3157268

MEADOWBROOK CONDOMINIUM VILLAGE

THIS DECLARATION AND BYLAWS is made and executed this 22 day of August, 1978, by Meadowbrook Downs Condominium Associates, a Utah Limited Partnership (hereinafter referred to as "Declarant"), pursuant to the provisions of the Utah Condominium Ownership Act (Sections 57-8-1 through 57-8-36, Utah Code Annotated (1953), as amended.

RECITALS:

- A. Declarant is the owner of that certain Parcel of real property more particularly described in Article II hereof.
- B. A Condominium Project, including certain Units and other improvements, has been constructed or is in the process of being constructed upon said Parcel. All of such construction has been, or is to be, performed in accordance with the information contained in this Record of Survey Map.
- C. Declarant desires, by filing this Declaration and the Survey Map, to submit said Parcel and all improvements now or hereafter constructed thereon to the provisions of the Act as a Condominium Project to be known as the "Meadowbrook Condominium Village".
- D. Declarant intends to convey to various persons the fee title to the individual Units contained in the Project, together with the undivided ownership interests in the Common Areas and Facilities appurtenant to such Units, subject to the covenants, restrictions and limitations herein set forth.

NOW, THEREFORE, for the foregoing purposes, Declarant hereby makes the following Declaration:

I. DEFINITIONS

When used in this Declaration (including that portion hereof headed "Recitals") the following terms shall have the meaning indicated. Any term used herein which is defined by the Act shall, to the extent permitted by the context hereof, have the meaning ascribed by the Act.

1. Act shall mean and refer to the Utah Condominium Ownership Act (Sections 57-8-1 through 57-8-36, Utah Code Annotated (1953)), as amended.

BOOK 4727 MEL 000

- 2. $\underline{\text{Declaration}}$ shall mean and refer to this Enabling Declaration.
- 3. Record of Survey Map and Survey Map shall mean and refer to the Record of Survey Map filed herewith, executed the 16th day of August, 1978, consisting of three (3) sheets, and prepared and certified to by Paul H. Gini, a duly registered Utah Land Surveyor holding Certificate No. 3149.
- 4. Management Committee and Committee shall mean and refer to the Management Committee of the Meadowbrook Condominium Village.
- 5. <u>Common Areas and Facilities</u> shall mean, refer to, and include:
 - (a) The real property and interests in real property which this Declaration submits to the terms of the Act.
 - (b) All Common Areas and Facilities designated as such in the Survey Map.
 - (c) All Limited Common Areas and Facilities.
 - (d) All foundations, roofs, and lobbies constituting a portion of or included in the improvements which comprise a part of the Project, and any halls, corridors, stairs, stairways, entrances, and exists which are designed for the use of more than one Unit.
 - (e) All installations for and all equipment connected with the furnishing of Project utility services such as electricity, gas, water and sewer, and exterior air conditioning equipment attached to unit rooftops, but only to the extent such facilities are located within the buildings contained within the Project.
 - (f) All tanks, pumps, motors, fans, compressors, ducts, and in general all apparatus, installations, and facilities included within the Project and existing for common use.
 - $\mbox{\ensuremath{\mbox{(g)}}}$ All parking and storage areas not located within any of the buildings which contain Units.
 - (h) The Project club houses, laundry rooms, swimming pool, dressing rooms, recreation building and areas, tennis court, whirl-pool hot bath, and roads.

- (i) All portions of the Project not specifically included with the individual Units.
- (j) All other parts of the Project normally in common use or necessary or convenient to its use, existence, maintenance, safety, or management.
- 6. Limited Common Areas and Facilities shall refer to those Common Areas and Facilities designated herein or in the Survey Map as reserved for the use of a certain Unit to the exclusion of the other Units, including the patio deck associated with each of the 50 "D" type Units.
- 7. Unit shall mean and refer to one of the 201 home Units which is designated as a Unit on the Record of Survey Map and in Exhibit A attached hereto (and incorporated herein by this reference). Unless a wall on the perimeter of a Unit separates and is common to two or more Units, such perimeter wall shall constitute a part of the Unit to which it relates. A wall on the perimeter of a Unit shall from and including the surface of such wall to its center, constitute a part of the Unit to which it relates. A Unit shall include any walls, partitions, and floors which are wholly contained within its vertical and horizontal perimeters and the surfaces of any floors, ceilings, or coverings which bound it. A Unit shall not include pipes, wires, conduits, or other utility lines running through it which are utilized for or which serve more than one Unit.
- 8. <u>Unit Number</u> shall mean and refer to the combination of number and letter which designate the Unit in the attached Exhibit A and on the Record of Survey Map. The numerical position of such combination denotes in which of the 51 buildings the Unit is located. The letter portion thereof specifies one of the four Units contained in such building.
- 9. Unit Owner or Owner shall mean and refer to the owner of the fee in a Unit and the percentage of undivided interest in the Common Areas and Facilities which is appurtenant thereto. In the event a Unit is the subject of an executory contract of sale, the contract purchaser shall, unless the seller and the purchaser have otherwise agreed and have informed the Committee in writing of such agreement, be considered the Unit Owner for purposes of voting and Committee membership. The Declarant shall be deemed the owner of all unsold units.
- which are expended on behalf of all the Unit Owners and all sums which are required by the Management Committee to perform or exercise its functions, duties, or rights under the Act, this Declaration, the Management Agreement for operation of the Project, and such rules and regulations as the Management Committee may from time to time make and adopt.

- 11. Common Profits shall mean and refer to the balance of income, rents, profits and revenues from the Common Areas remaining after deduction of the Common Expenses.
- 12. Parcel shall mean and refer to the real property which Article II of this Declaration submits to the terms and of the Act.
- 13. <u>Condominium Project</u> or <u>Project</u> shall mean and refer to the <u>Meadowbrook Condominium Village</u>.
- 14. Mortgage shall mean any mortgage deed of trust or other security instrument by which a Unit or any part thereof is encumbered.
- 15. Mortgagee shall mean any person named as a mortgagee or beneficiary under or holder of a deed of trust or other security interest.
- 16. Percentage Interest shall mean and refer to the percentage undivided interest of each Unit in the Common Areas as set forth in Exhibit "A" attached hereto.
- 17. Size shall mean and refer to the square footage of each Unit, exclusive of garage, as depicted on the Map and shown in said Exhibit "A".
- 18. Declarant shall mean and refer to Meadowbrook
 Downs Condominium Associates, a Limited Partnership, and its successors

II. SUBMISSION

Declarant hereby submits to the provisions of the Act, as the Parcel associated with Meadowbrook Condominium Village, the following-described real property situated in Salt Lake County, State of Utah:

Beginning at a point which is N0°12'15"W 214.80' ft. & East 669.76' ft. from the West 1/4 Cor. Sec. 2 T2S-RlW, S.L.B.&M., running thence; North 564.0 ft., thence; East 1122.60'ft., thence; S0°45'00"E 594.05'ft. thence; West 513.18'ft. to a point on a 253.77' ft. radius curve to the left (brg. to cen. S30°53'52"E) thence; NW'erly along the arc of said curve 136.80'ft., through a central angle of 30°53'52", thence; South 6.0'ft. thence; West 487.05' ft. to the point of beginning. Contains 14.953 acres

RESERVED FROM THE FOREGOING SUBMISSION are all presently existing or to be constructed

sewer lines and water mains located beyond or outside the buildings contained within the Project.

THE FOREGOING SUBMISSION IS SUBJECT TO: all Patent reservations and exclusions; all instruments of record which affect the abovedescribed Parcel or any portion thereof; all visible easements and rights-of-way; all easements and rights-of-way of record; all easements and rights-of-way shown on the Survey Map; an easement for each and every pipe, line, cable, wire, utility line, or similar facility which traverses or partially occupies the above-described Parcel at such time as construction of all Project improvements is complete; and all easements necessary for ingress to, egress from, maintenance of, and replacement of all such pipes, lines, cables, wires, utility lines, and similar facilities.

III. COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

The foregoing submission is made upon and under the following covenants, conditions and restrictions:

- l. Description of Improvements. The improvements included in the Project are now or will be located upon the Parcel described above, and all such improvements are described in the Survey Map. The Survey Map shows the basements (if any), the number of stories, and the number of Units which are to be contained in the buildings which comprise a part of such improvements. The buildings shall be principally constructed of the following materials: Wooden frames with both load-bearing and non-bearing walls studded with wood; All floors composed of wooden joists covered with plywood and particle board; Wooden truss joist roofs covered with plywood; Roofs surfaced with asphalt shingles; Interior walls surfaced with dry wall; Lower portion of exterior walls surfaced with plywood, textured with texacote.
- 2. Description and Legal Status of Units. The Record of Survey Map shows the Unit Number of each Unit, its location, dimensions from which its area may be determined, and the Common Areas and Facilities to which it has immediate access. Included in each Unit in building #1 #50 are two bedrooms, one bathroom, a kitchen, a combined dining room-living room, and a one-car garage. Building #51 contains one Unit consisting of four bedrooms, two bathrooms, a kitchen, a dining room-living room combination and a two car garage. Each Unit shall be capable of being separately owned, encumbered and conveyed.

- 3. Contents of Exhibit A. Exhibit A to this Declaration furnishes the following information with respect to each Unit in the Project: (a) The Unit Number; and (b) The Unit's appurtenant percentage of undivided ownership interest in the Common Areas and Facilities.
- 4. Common and Limited Common Areas and Facilities. The Common and Limited Common Areas and Facilities contained in the Project are described and identified in Article I of this Declaration. The exclusive use of each patio deck is reserved to the "D" type Unit with which it is contiguous. Neither the percentage of undivided ownership interest in the Common Areas and Facilities nor the right of exclusive use of a Limited Common Area and Facility shall be separated from the Unit to which it appertains; and, even though not specifically mentioned in the instrument of transfer, such percentage of undivided ownership interest and such right of exclusive use shall automatically accompany the transfer of the Unit to which they relate.
- 5. Computation of Undivided Interests. The percentage of undivided ownership interest in the Common Areas and Facilities which is appurtenant to each Unit has been computed by taking as a basis the Unit in relation to the total number of units in the project as a whole. Thus, the percentage of undivided ownership interest appurtenant to each Unit is the ratio between the Unit and the total number of all Units included within the Project.
- 6. Unit Maintenance. Each Owner shall at his own cost and expense maintain, repair, paint, re-paint, tile, paper or otherwise refinish and decorate the interior surfaces of the walls, ceilings, floors, windows and doors forming the boundaries of his Unit and all walls, ceiling, floors, windows and doors within such boundaries. In addition to decorating and keeping the interior of his Unit in good repair and in a clean and sanitary condition, he shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair or replacement of any plumbing fixtures, water heater, heating equipment, air conditioner, lighting fixtures, refrigerator, dishwasher, disposal equipment, range, or other appliances or fixtures that may be in, or connected with, his Unit. Each Unit shall be maintained so as not to detract from the appearance of the Project and so as not to affect adversely the value or use of any other Unit.
- Common Areas encroaches or shall hereafter encroach upon a Unit or Units, an easement for such encroachment and for the maintenance for the same shall and does exist. If any part of a Unit encreaches or shall hereafter encroach upon the Common Areas, or upon an adjoining Unit or Units, an easement for such encroachment and for the maintenance shall and does exist. Such encroachments shall not be considered to be encumbrances either to the Common Areas or the Units. Encroachments referred to herein include, but are not limited to, encroachments caused by error in the original construction of the building(s) on the tract, by

error in the Map, by settling, rising or shifting of the earth, or by changes in position caused by repair or reconstruction of the Project or any part thereof.

- Common Areas are or ray be located within the Units or may be conveniently accessible only through the Units. The Owners of the other Units shall have the irrevocable rights, to be exertised by the Committee, as its agent, to have access to each Unit and to all Common Areas from time to time during such reasonable hours as may be necessary for the maintenance, repair or replacement of any of the Common Areas located therein or accessible ment of any of the Common Areas located therein necessary to therefrom or for making emergency repairs therein necessary to prevent damage to the Common Areas or to another Units or Units. The Committee shall also have such rights independent of the agency relationship to repair any damage to the interior of any part of a Unit or Units resulting from the maintenance, repair, emergency repair, or replacement of any of the Common Areas or as a result of emergency repairs within another Unit at the instance of the Committee or of Unit Owners provided, that if ouch damage of the Committee or of Unit Owners provided, that if ouch damage is the result of negligence of the Owner of a Unit, then such Owner shall be financially responsible for all such damage. Such Owner shall be repaired and the property shall be restored substantially to the same condition as emisted prior to damage. Amounts owing by Owners pursuant horsets shall be collected by the Committee by assessment.
- 9. Right of Ingress, Foress, Lateral Support. Each Owner shall have the right to ingress and egress over, upon and across the Common Areas necessary for access to his thit, and to the Limited Common Areas designated for use in connection with his Unit, and such rights shall be appurtenant to and pass with the title to each Unit.
- 10. Pasement to Hangement Cornittoe. The Management Committee shall have non-exclusive easements to take such use of the Common Areas as may be necessary or appropriate to perform the duties and functions which it is obligated or permitted to perform pursuant to this Declaration.
- 11. Reservent for Utility Services. There is hereby created a blanket easement upon, Gerous, over and under the parcel above described in Article II for ingress, Cyress, installation, replacing, repairing and cointaining all utilities, including but not limited to, water, sewers, gas, telephones, electricity, and other utility services.

12. Use of Condominate and Carmon Areas.

- (a) tach of the Calte in the Project is intended to be used for single family residential housing and is restricted to such use.
- (b) There shall be no eletractical of the Common Areas by the Common their tenants, gurata or invitees without

the prior written consent of the Committee. The Committee may by rules and regulations prohibit or limit the use of the Common Areas as may be reasonably necessary for protecting the interests of all the Owners or protecting the Units or the Common Areas. Nothing shall be kept or stored on any part of the Common Areas without the prior written consent of the Committee, except as specifically provided herein. Nothing shall be altered on, constructed in or removed from the Common Areas except upon the prior written consent of the Committee.

- (c) Nothing shall be done or kept in any Unit or in the Common Areas or any part thereof which would result in the cancellation of the insurance on the Project or any part thereof or increase of the rate of the insurance on the Project or any part thereof over what the Committee, but for such activity, would pay, without the prior written consent of the Committee. Nothing shall be done or kept in any Unit or in the Common Areas or any part thereof which would be a violation of any statute, rule, ordinance, regulation, permit or other validly imposed requirement of any governmental body. No damage to, or waste of, the Cormon Areas or any part thereof shall be committed by any Owner or any invitee of any Owner, and each Owner shall indemnify and hold the Committee and the Owners harmless against all loss resulting from any such damage or waste caused by him or his invitees; provided, however, that any invitee of the Declarant shall not under any circumstances be deemed to be an invitee of any other Owner. No noxious, destructive or offensive activity shall be carried on in any Unit or in the Common Areas or any part thereof, nor shall anything be done therein which may be or may become an annoyance or nuisance to any other Owner or to any person at any time lawfully residing in the Project.
- (d) No Owner shall violate the rules and regulations for the use of the Units and of the Common Areas as adopted from time to time by the Management Committee.
- (e) No structural alterations to any Unit shall to made by any Owner without the prior written consent of the Cerrittee.
- (f) No recreational vehicle (boats, campers, trailers, motor homes, or similar items) shall be parked on any portion of the Common Areas except for designated parking areas.
- (g) No signs whatsoever shall be erected or maintained in the Common Areas without the prior written consent of the Committee, except: (i) Such signs as may be required by legal proceedings, and (ii) such signs as Declarant may erect or maintain incident to sale of Units.
- (h) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contemp, until the Declarant has completed and sold all of the Unite, neither the Unit Owners who have purchased Units from the Declarant nor the Committee shall interfere with the completion of improvements and sale of the remaining Units. The Declarant reserves the right to use any Units owned by Declarant as

models, management offices or sales offices until such time as Declarant conveys title thereto to Unit Owners. Declarant reserves the might to relocate from time to time within the Project; upon relocation or sale of a model, management office or sales office, the furnishings thereof may be removed. Declarant further reserves the right to maintain on the Project such advertising signs, which may be placed in any location on the Project and may be relocated or removed, all at the sole discretion of Declarant.

- 13. Status and General Authority of Committee. The Condominium Project shall be managed, operated and maintained by the Management Committee as agent for the Unit Owners. The Committee shall, in connection with its exercise of any of the powers delineated below, constitute a legal entity capable of dealing in its Committee mane. The Management Committee shall have, and is hereby granted, the following authority and powers:
 - (a) The authority, without the vote or consent of the Unit Conners of or any other person(s), to grant or create, on such terms as (t deems advisable, stillty and similar easterness ever, under, across, and through the Consen Areas and Tabilities.
 - (h) The authority to execute and record, on behalf of all the late Gamers, any amendment to the Declaration or Record of Survey has which has been approved by the vote or contact for the recomment.
 - (a) The part to see and be sued.
 - (3) The antisty to enter into contender which in any case of the Project, and the any case of the Unit Games of the Unit Games of the Unit of any case that be the any case of the Contended of the Unit of the any case that he has been continued.
 - (4) the sever and dathority to convey or teamsfor and interest in real property, so less an eny value or selected mesessary under the electrical mesessary under
 - Ith The person and authority to purchase, orthogoder tegalize, and assemt title to, any unthreaded in real projects. So long as such artima has been a different by any vote or content which is reserved by any cote or content which is reserved by the the circumstances.
 - In the compact of compact to add any notice with the continuent to compact the continuent to compact the continuent to compact the continuent probability and the continuent to continue the continuent to continue

- (h) The authority to license persons not otherwise entitled to use any of the recreational areas and facilities to use the same from time to time as the Committee deems appropriate upon payment of fees prescribed by it to help defray the cost of maintenance thereof.
- (i) The power and authority to borrow money so long as such action has been authorized by any vote or consent which is necessary under the circumstances.
- (j) The authority to promulgate such reasonable rules, regulations, and procedures as may be necessary or desirable to aid the Committee in carrying out any of its functions or to insure that the Project is maintained and used in a manner consistent with the interests of the Unit Owners.
- (k) The power and authority to perform any other acts and to enter into any other transactions which may be reasonably necessary for the Management Committee to perform its functions as agent for the Unit Owners.

Any instrument executed by the Management Committee that recites facts which, if true, would establish the Committee's power and authority to accomplish through such instrument what is purported to be accomplished thereby, shall conclusively establish said power and authority in favor of any person who in good faith and for value relies upon said instrument.

- Project Manager any of its functions which are properly the subject of delegation. Any Manager retained for such purpose must be an individual or entity experienced and qualified in the field of property management. Such manager shall be responsible for managing the Project for the benefit of the Committee and the Unit Owners, and shall, to the extent permitted by law and the terms of the agreement with the Committee, be authorized to perform any of the functions or acts required or permitted to be performed by the Management Committee itself. It is anticipated that the Committee will be elected and commence its duties within one month after the closing on the last unit sold or earlier if Declarant so elects.
- 15. Composition of Management Committee. The Committee shall be composed of five members. At the first regular Owners meeting three Committee members shall be elected for two-year terms and two members for one-year terms. At each annual Owners meeting thereafter any vacant seat on the Committee shall be filled with a member elected for a two-year term. Members shall

BOOK 4727 PAGE 61

serve on the Committee until their successors are elected and qualify. Only Unit owners and officers and agents of Owners other than individuals shall be eligible for Committee membership. At the annual meeting each Unit Owner may vote his percentage of undivided ownership interest in favor of as many candidates for Committee membership as there are seats on the Committee to be Committee membership as there are seats on the Committee to be filled; provided, however, that so long as Declarant owns ten or more units a majority of the Committee members shall be selected by Declarant. Until the first annual meeting of the Owners the members of the Committee, although numbering less than five, shall be the following persons and each shall hold the office indicated opposite his name:

Calvin B. Stewart Richard F. Gordon Mary Lou Davis President Vice President Secretary-Treasurer

Declarant, prior to the Transfer Date mentioned in paragraph 24 hereof, may in its discretion appoint three Unit Owners as hold over members of the Committee to hold office ending two years from the Transfer Date. If such hold over members should be appointed, then at the first regular meeting of Owners only two Committee Members shall be elected for a one-year term.

In the event a Committee seat which was filled by Declarant becomes vacant, Declarant shall have the right to select a replacement member to sit on the Committee for the balance of the term associated with the vacated seat. In all other cases of vacancy the remaining Committee members shall elect a replacement to sit on the Committee until the expiration of the term for which the member being replaced was elected. Committee members shall be reimbursed for all expenses reasonably incurred in connection with Committee business. The Committee may fix such compensation for any member as may be reasonable in light of the Committee duties which that member is required to perform.

- shall perform its functions through those members who are elected as officers by the Committee and through such agents or employees as the Committee may appoint. Any Committee officer, agent or employee may at any time be removed with or without cause by the vote of a majority of the Committee members. The officers of the Committee, and their respective powers and functions, shall be as follows:
 - (a) <u>President</u>. The President shall be the chief executive of the Committee and shall exercise general supervision over the property and affairs of the Project. He shall preside over all meetings of the Committee and of the Unit Owners. He shall execute all instruments on behalf of the Committee.

- may elect one or more of its members to the office of Vice President. In the event only one member holds such office, the Vice President shall have all the powers of the President in the event of the latter's absence or inability to act. In the event more than one member holds the office of Vice President and the President is absent or unable to act, the Committee shall specify which Vice President is to exercise the powers of the President.
- (c) Secretary. The Secretary shall keep minutes of meetings of the Committee and of the Unit Owners and shall keep all records which are required or made necessary by the Act, this Declaration, or the Committee.
- (d) Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have custody and control of the funds available to the Committee. He shall furnish the Committee with a bond, in the amount specified by the Committee, conditioned upon the faithful purformance of his duties. The offices of Socretary and Treasurer or of Vice President and Treasurer may be held by the same Committee member.
- (e) Assistant Secretary shall have the powers of the Secretary in the event of the latter's absence or inability to act.
- (f) Other Officers. The Committee Far appoint such other officers, in addition to the officers hardinabove expressly made, on at chall deem necessary, who shall have authority to perform such duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Committee.
- (g) Removal of Officers and Agents. All officers and agents shall be subject to removal, with or without cause, at any time by the affarantive vote of the majority of the them for the of the Committee.
- Committee Meetings. A regular meeting of the Cornittee shall be held immediately after the adjournable of each annual Comers recting. Other regular meetings shall be retted at regular intervals at such time and place as the Cornittee meetings of previols. To notice need be given of regular Cornittee meetings shall be held whenever calls to be upon president or by any two members of the Cornittee. Finish of all president or by any two members of the Cornittee. Finish of the annual continues at the case of annual metice to signed by all members, he given to each decrease members at least 24 hours before the time fixed for the forentials. App northest attended by all Cornittee members shall be unliked for

all purposes. A quorum for the transaction of business at any Committee meeting shall consist of a majority of all the members then in office.

- (a) A regular meeting of the Committee shall be held immediately after the adjournment of each annual Owners meeting. Other regular meetings shall be held at regular intervals at such time and place as the Committee may provide. We notice need be given of regular Committee meetings.
- (b) Special Committee meetings shall be held whenever called by the Chairman or a majority of the Committee. Either oral or written notice of special meetings shall, unless a waiver of such notice is signed by all members, be given to each Committee member as least 24 hours befor the time fixed for the meeting. Any meeting attended by all Committee members shall be valid for all purposes.
- (a) A quorum for the transaction of busimess at any Committee recting shall consist of a majority of all the combers then in office.
- (d) Markers of the Cormittee, as such, shall not receive any atated salary or corpon-cations promised that nothing herein contained than the constrained or prestuded any combut thoreast from occasions the Project in any other constity and resulving companion therefor.
- (a) For or at any morting of the Country, the volume there is, may, in verting, value to the of their mosting and such taken that the deviations to the giving of the country of the the at any mosting by him of the time and place the theory.
- (1) The Corrieted may adjourn any first ing from day to day or for Duch other time day on the day or for county, provided that the may to frag be aligned on the longer than thirty (10) cays.
- (1) The Correletor shall require that all entires are expensed to the Correletor hands and the control of the Correletor for the control of t

18. Owners Meeting.

- (a) Regular Meetings. The regular meeting of the Unit Owners shall be held at 7:30 p.m. on the second Wednesday in May, 1980, and on the second Wednesday in March of each succeeding year. Whenever such day is a legal holiday, the meeting shall occur on the first business day thereafter. The place of meeting shall be at a location in Salt Lake County, Utah specified in the notice of meeting. At least 10 days before the date of the regular meeting a written notice thereof shall be personally delivered or mailed postage prepaid to each Unit Owner at his last known address. Such notice shall state the time, place, and general purpose of the meeting.
- (b) Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Owners may be called by the President, by any two members of the Committee, or by Unit Owners cumulatively holding at least one-fourth of the undivided ownership interest in the Project. At least seven days before the data set for a special meeting written notice such as that described in the immediately preceding paragraph shall be personally delivered or mailed postage prepaid to each Unit Owner at his last known address.
- ((2) Wilver of Losice. To notice of any Capers of Eing shall be to paired if a caiver of Such retice is signed by all of the Capers. Capers for the perist of by Aroner of I the capers for the termination of bull paragons. A quores for the termination of bull-most at an Comors forth whill consist of a finerity of all the wallvided constraint anterest in the Project. In the event of quores is tot process at an Capers for a tire of termination of adjoint and and for a tire of a disjoint and and for a tire of the final form of the first of the final form and the first the first and all the original form the transaction of the first of all the original conting the first of all the original conting in the error of and the Project.
- (E) 1 (

in person or represented by proxy, shall decide any question of business brought before such meeting, including the election of the Committee, unless the question is one upon which, by express provisions of the statutes or the Declaration a different vote is required, in which case such express provision shall govern and control the decision of such question. All votes may be cast either in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing, and in the case of proxies for the annual Association meeting, they shall be delivered to the Secretary of the Committee at least five (5) days prior thereto. Proxies for special Association meetings must be of record with the Secretary of the Committee at least two (2) days prior to such meeting.

19. Accounting.

- (a) The books and accounts of the Committee shall be kept under the direction of the Treasurer and in accordance with the reasonable standards of account procedures.
- (b) Report. At the close of each accounting year, the books and records of the Committee shall be reviewed by a person or firm selected by the Committee. Report of such review shall be prepared and submitted to the Unit Owners at or before the annual meeting of the Association; provided, however, that a certified audit by a Certified Public Accountant approved by the Unit Owners shall be made if at least seventy-five percent of the owners of undivided interest in the Common Areas determine to do So.
- (c) <u>Inspection of Books</u>. Financial reports, such as are required to be furnished, shall be available at the principal office of the Committee or the manager for inspection at reasonable times by any Unit Owner.
- 20. Capital Improvements. Additions or capital improvements to the Project which cost no more than \$5,000.00 may be authorized by the Management Committee alone. Additions or capital improvements the cost of which will exceed such amount must, prior to being constructed, be authorized by at least a majority of the undivided ownership interest in the Project. Any addition or capital improvement which would materially alter the nature of the Project must, regardless of its cost and prior to being constructed, be authorized by at least 75% of the Project's undivided ownership interest.

BOOK 4727 PAGE 621

- 21. Operation and Maintenance; Apportionment of Common Expenses. The Management Committee shall, as a portion of the Common Expenses, pay for all utility services furnished to each Unit except telephone and any other services which are separately billed to individual Units by the utility or other party furnishing such service. The Committee shall provide for such maintenance and operation of the Common and Limited Common Areas and Facilities as may be reasonably necessary to keep them clean, functional, attractive, and generally in good condition and repair. The Committee shall have no obligation regarding maintenance of care of Units. Expenses attributable to the Common Areas and to the Project as a whole shall be apportioned among all Units in proportion to their Percentage Interest.
- Before May 1 of each year the Payment of Expenses. Committee shall prepare a budget which sets forth an itemization of the Common Expenses which are anticipated for the 12-month period commencing with the following May 1. Such budget shall take into account any deficit or surplus realized during the current fiscal year. The total of such expenses shall be apportioned among all the Units on the basis of their appurtenant percentages of undivided ownership interest. Prior to the first day of each month during the fiscal year covered by the budget each Unit Owner shall pay to the Committee as his share of the Common Expenses one-twelfth of the amount so apportioned to his Unit. If such monthly payments are too large or too small as a result of unanticipated income or expenses, the Committee may effect an equitable change in the amount of said payments. The dates and manner of payment shall be determined by the Committee. The foregoing method of assessing the Common Expenses to the Unit Owners may be altered by the Committee so long as the method it adopts is consistent with good accounting practice and requires that the portion of Common Expenses borne by each Owner during a 12-month period be determined on the basis of his undivided ownership interest.
- 23. Remedies for Nonpayment. Should any Unit Owner fail to pay when due his share of the Common Expenses, the Committee may enforce any remedy provided in the Act or otherwise available for collection of delinquent Common Expense assessments. Regardless of the terms of any agreement to which the Committee is not a party, liability for the payment of Common Expense assessments shall be joint and several, and any remedy for the collection of such assessments may be enforced against any person holding an ownership interest in the Unit concerned, against the interest which is held by him, against either or both the seller or purchaser under an executory contract of sale covering the Unit concerned, against the interests in the Unit which are held by any such seller or purchaser, and against any combination or all of such persons and interests. Any relief obtained, whether or not through foreclosure proceedings, shall include the Committee's costs and expenses and a reasonable attorney's fee. In the ex of foreclosure, after institution of the action the Committee shall, without regard to the value of the Unit or the extent of the Owner's equity therein, be entitled to the appointment of a receiver to collect any income or rentals which may be produced by the Unit concerned.

500K4727 PAGE 622

- 24. Transfer of Management. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in paragraph 15 above, Declarant may at any time relinquish its reserved right to select the members of the Committee and to transfer the management of the Project to the Committee elected by Unit Owners. If and when Declarant elects so to do, Declarant shall send written notification of the effective date of such transfer (Transfer Date) at least 45 days prior thereto. Thereupon, Unit Owners shall call a meeting to elect the members of their own Management Committee to take office as of the Transfer Date. Declarant covenants to cooperate with Unit Owners in effecting orderly transition of management. Moreover, Declarant shall cause all obligations for Common Expenses of the Committee prior to the Transfer Date to be paid in full on or before such date. Accordingly, it is anticipated that the cash position of the Committee as of the Transfer Date will be zero.
- $25.\ \underline{\text{Insurance}}.$ The Management Committee shall secure and at all times maintain the following insurance coverages:
 - (a) A policy or policies of fire and casualty insurance, which extended coverage endorsement, for the full insurable replacement value of the entire Project. Such policy or policies shall be made payable to the Committee and all persons holding an interest in the Project or any of the Units, as their interests may appear.
 - (b) A policy or policies insuring the Committee, the Manager, and the Unit Owners against any liability incident to the ownership, use, or operation of the Project or of any Unit which may arise among themselves, to the public, and to any invitees or tenants of the Project or of the Unit Owners. Limits of liability under such insurance shall be not less than \$300,000.00 for any one person injured, \$1,000,000.00 for all persons injured in any one accident, and \$100,000.00 for property damage resulting from one occurrence. Such policies shall be issued on a comprehensive liability basis and shall provide a cross liability endorsement pursuant to which the rights of the named insureds as between themselves are not prejudiced.
 - (c) The Association shall maintain fidelity coverage to protect against dishonest acts on the part of Committee members, Manager, employees or volunteers responsible for handling funds belonging to or administered by the Association. The fidelity bond or insurance must name the Association as the named insured

1.000K4727 PAGE 62:

and shall be written in an amount sufficient to provide protection which in no event shall be less than one and one-half times the insured's estimated annual operating expenses and reserves. In connection with such coverage an appropriate endorsement to the policy to cover any persons who serve without compensation shall be added if the policy would not otherwise cover volunteers.

The following additional provisions shall apply with respect to insurance:

- (a) In addition to the insurance described above, the Committee shall secure and at all times maintain insurance against such risks as are or hereafter may be customarily insured against in connection with condominium projects similar to the Project in construction, nature, and use.
- (b) All policies shall be written by a company holding a rating of "AA" or better from Best's Insurance Reports.
- (c) The Committee shall have the authority to adjust losses. $\,$
- (d) Insurance secured and maintained by the Committee shall not be brought into contributions with insurance held by the individual Unit Owners or their mortgagees.
- (e) Each policy of insurance obtained by the Committee shall, if possible, provide: A waiver of the insurer's subrogation rights with respect to the Committee, the Manager, the Unit Owners, and their respective servants, agents, and guests; That it cannot be cancelled, suspended or invalidated due to the conduct of any particular Unit Owner or Owners; That it cannot be cancelled, suspended or invalidated due to the conduct of the Manager of or any member, officer, or employee of the Committee without a prior written demand that the defect be cured; That any "no other insurance" clause therein shall not apply with respect to insurance held individually by the Unit Owners.
- (f) Any Unit Owner may obtain additional insurance at his own expense, so long as such additional insurance does not have the effect of decreasing the amount which may be realized

under any policy maintained by the Committee. Any Unit Owner who individually obtains insurance covering any portion of the Project shall supply the Committee with a copy of his policy within 30 days after he acquires such insurance.

- (g) The Project is not located in an area identified by the Housing and Urban Development as an area having special flood hazards. In the event that at some future time the Project should be declared to be in such flood area, a blanket policy of flood insurance on the Project shall be maintained in the amount of the aggregate of the outstanding principal balances of the mortgage loans on the Units comprising the Project or the maximum limit of coverage available under the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968, as amended, whichever is less. The name of the insured under each required policy must be in form and substance as that required by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation at any given time.
- 26. <u>Damage to Project</u>. In the event of damage to or destruction of part or all of the improvements in the Condominium Project, the following procedures shall apply:
 - (a) If proceeds of the insurance maintained by the Management Committee are alone sufficient to repair or reconstruct the damaged or destroyed improvement, such repair or reconstruction shall be carried out.
 - (b) If less than 75% of the Project's improvements are destroyed or substantially damaged, and if proceeds of the insurance maintained by the Committee are not alone sufficient to accomplish repair or reconstruction, restoration shall be carried out and all the Unit Owners shall be assessed for any deficiency on the basis of their respective percentages of undivided interest in the Common Area and Facilities.
 - (c) If 75% or more of the Project's improvements are destroyed or substantially damaged, if proceeds of the insurance maintained by the Management Committee are not alone sufficient to accomplish restoration, and if the Unit Owners within 100 days after the destruction or damage by a vote of at least 75% elect to repair or reconstruct the affected improvements, restoration shall be accomplished in the manner directed under subparagraph (b) above.

If 75% or more of the Project's improvements are destroyed or substantially damaged, if proceeds of the insurance maintained by the Committee are insufficient to accomplish restoration, and if the Unit Owners do not, within 100 days after the destruction or damage and by a vote of at least 75%, elect to repair or reconstruct the affected improvements, the Management Committee shall promptly record with the Salt Lake County Recorder a notice setting forth such facts. Upon the recording of such notice the provisions of subsections (1) through (4) of Section 57-8-31, Utah Code Annotated (1953), shall apply and shall govern the rights of all parties having an interest in the Project or any of the Units.

Any reconstruction or repair which is required to be carried out by this Paragraph 26 shall be accomplished at the instance and direction of the Management Committee. Any determination which is required to be made by this Paragraph 26 regarding the extent of damage to or destruction of Project improvements shall be made as follows: The Management Committee shall select three MAI appraisers; each appraiser shall independently arrive at a figure representing the percentage of Project improvements which have been destroyed or substantially damaged; the percentage which governs the application of the provisions of this Paragraph 26 shall be the average of the two closest appraisal figures.

- 27. Consent Equivalent to Vote. In those cases in which the Act or this Declaration requires the vote of a stated percentage of the Project's undivided ownership interest for the authorization or approval of a transaction, such requirement may be fully satisfied by obtaining, with or without a meeting, consents in writing to such transaction from Unit Owners who collectively hold at least the necessary percentage of undivided ownership interest.
- 28. Certain Provisions Applicable to Declarant. Not-withstanding any other provision herein contained, for so long as Declarant continues to own any of the Units the following provisions shall be deemed to be in full force and effect, none of which shall be construed so as to relieve the Declarant from any obligations of Unit Owner to pay assessments, except as herein otherwise provided, as to each Unit owned by Declarant in accordance with the Declaration.
 - (a) Declarant specifically disclaims any intent to have made any warranty or representation in connection with the project or the Declaration except as specifically set forth herein or in any agreement for sale of a Unit, and no person shall rely upon any warranty or representation not so specifically made therein.

No amendment may be made to the Declaration without the written consent of Declarant so long as Declarant retains the ownership of five (5) or more Units; provided however, that the obligation to acquire said written consent of Declarant shall cease on a date two (2) years from the date of recording of the final phase of the Declaration.

The foregoing right of amendment shall be subject to the following paramount rights:

- (a) Until all but five Units of the entire Project have been sold, Declarant shall have, and is hereby vested with, the right to unilaterally amend this Declaration or the Map. Such right shall obtain without regard to the subject matter of amendment, so long as the amendment involved is consistent with law.
- Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Declaration, neither the insurance provisions of paragraph 25, the mortgagee protection provisions of paragraph 32, nor the Percentage Interest in the Common Areas provision of paragraph 5 shall be amended without the written approval of all institutional first Mortgagees.
- The vote of at least 67% of the undi-Amendment. vided ownership interest in the Common Areas and Facilities shall be required to amend this Declaration or the Record of Survey Map. Any amendment so authorized shall be accomplished through the recordation of an instrument executed by the Management Committee. In such instrument the Committee shall certify that the vote required by this Paragraph for amendment has occurred. Except as provided below, the vote of at least 67% of the undivided ownership interest in the Common Areas and Facilities shall be required to amend this Declaration or the Map. Any amendment so authorized shall be accomplished through the recordation of an instrument executed by the Management Committee. In such instrument the Committee shall certify that the vote required by this Paragraph for amendment has occurred.
- Eminent Domain. Whenever all or part of the Common Areas shall be taken, injured or destroyed as the result of the exercise of the power of eminent domain, each Unit Owner shall be entitled to notice thereof and to participate in the proceedings incident thereto, but in any proceeding for the determination of damages, such damages shall be determined for such taking, injury or destruction as a whole and not for each Unit Owner's interest therein. After such determination each Unit Owner shall be entitled to a share in the damages in the same portion as his Percentage Interest in the Common Areas. proceedings incident thereto, but in any proceeding for the

OUNT 727 ME 627

- 31. Agent for Service of Process. Richard F. Gordon has offices at \$\frac{1100}{1100}\$ Beneficial Life Tower, Salt Lake City, Utah 84111, Salt Lake County, State of Utah and is the person to receive service of process in the cases authorized by the Act. The Management Committee shall, however, have the right to appoint a successor or substitute process agent. Such successor or substitute agent and its address shall be specified by an appropriate instrument filed in the Office of the County Recorder of Salt Lake County, State of Utah.
- 32. Mortgagee Protection. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Declaration:
 - (a) An adequate reserve fund for repair, maintenance and replacement of the Common Areas must be established and shall be funded by regular monthly payments rather than by special assessments.
 - (b) There shall be established a working capital fund for the initial months of operation of the Project equal to a minimum amount of two months' estimated Common Area charged for each Unit.
 - (c) Any mortgage holder which comes into possession of the Unit pursuant to the remedies provided in the Mortgage or fore-closure of the Mortgage or deed (or assignment in lieu of foreclosure) shall be exempt from any "right of first refusal", or other provisions which may exist relating to sale or lease of the Units in the Project.
 - (d) Any agreement for professional management of the Project, or any other contract providing for services by the Declarant must provide for termination by either party without cause or payment of a termination fee on 90 days or less written notice and a maximum contract term of three years.
 - (e) In the event of damage to or destruction of any Unit, which loss exceeds \$1,000.00, or any part of the Common Areas, which loss exceeds \$10,000.00, the institutional holder of any first mortgage on a Unit shall be entitled to timely written notice to any such damage or destruction. No Unit

Owner or other party shall be entitled to priority over such institutional holder with respect to the distribution to such Unit of any insurance proceeds regardless of the amount of loss.

- If any Unit or portion thereof or (f) the Common Areas or any portion thereof is made the subject matter of any condemnation or eminent domain proceeding or is otherwise sought to be acquired by a condemning authority, which taking of Common Areas exceeds \$10,000.00, or which taking of Units exceeds \$1,000.00, the institutional holder of any first mortgage of a Unit shall be entitled to timely written notice of any such proceeding or proposed acquisition. No Unit Owner or other party shall have priority over such institutional holder regardless of the amount of the condemnation award with respect to the distribution to such Unit of the proceeds of any award or settlement.
- (g) With the exception of a lender in possession of a Unit following a default in a first mortgage, a foreclosure proceeding or any deed or other arrangement in lieu of foreclosure, no Unit Owner may lease less than the entire unit. Any lease agreement shall provide that the terms of the lease shall be subject in all respects to the provisions of the Declaration and By-Laws and that any failure by the lessee to comply with the terms of such documents shall be a default under the lease. All leases shall be in writing.
- (h) Each holder of a first mortgage lien on a unit who obtains title to a Unit by virtue of remedies provided in the Mortgage, including but not limited to, foreclosure of the mortgage, or by deed of assignment in lieu of foreclosure, shall take the Unit free of unpaid charges and shall not be liable for any unpaid claims or assessments and charges against the Unit which accrue prior to the acquisition of title of such Unit by Mortgagee.
- (i) Any holder of the Mortgage is entitled to written notification from the Management Committee of any default by the Mortgagor or such Unit in the performance of such Mortgagor's obligation under the Declaration which is not cured within thirty (30) days.

- (j) Any lien which the Management Committee may have on any Unit in the Project for the payment of Common Expense assessments attributable to such Unit will be subordinate to the lien or equivalent security interest of any first mortgage on the Unit.
- (k) Unless at least 75% of the first Mortgagees (based on one vote for each Mortgage owned) of Units have given their prior written approval neither the Management Committee, Declarant, nor the Association shall:
- (1) By act or omission, seek to abandon or terminate the Project.
- (2) Change the pro rata interest or obligation of any Unit for (i) purposes of levying assessments or charges or allocating distributions of hazard insurance proceeds or condemnation awards and for (ii) determining the pro rata share of ownership of each Unit in the appurtenant Common Areas.
- (3) Partition or subdivide any Unit.
- (4) Make any material amendment to the Declaration or to the By-Laws of the Management Committee, including, but not limited to, any amendment which would change the percentage interests of the Unit Owners in the Common Areas, except as provided in Paragraph 27 concerning certain rights reserved to Declarant.
- (5) By act or omission, seek to amend, partition, subdivide, encumber, sell, abandon or transfer, the Common Areas. (The granting of easements for public utilities or for other public purposes consistent with the intended use of the Common Areas of the Project shall not be deemed a transfer within the meaning of this subparagraph).
- (6) Use hazard insurance proceeds for losses to any condominium property (whether to Units or to the Common Areas) for other than the repair, replacement or reconstruction of such improvements, except as provided by statute in cases of substantial loss to the Units and/or the Common Areas of the Project.
- (7) Terminate professional management and assume self-management of the Project.

- (1) The holders of the first mortgages (or trust deeds) shall have the right to examine the books and records of the Project.
- (m) Whenever there is a change of ownership of a Unit, the Committee shall require that the new Unit Owner furnish the Committee with the name of the holder of any first mortgage (or trust deed) affecting such Unit. The Management Committee or Manager shall maintain a current roster of Unit Owners and of the holders of first mortgages (or trust deed) affecting Units in the Project.
- 33. Duty of Owner to Pay Taxes on Unit Owned. It is understood that under the Act each Unit (and its percentage of interest in the Common Areas) in the Project is subject to separate assessment and taxation of each taxing authority and the special district(s) for all types of taxes and assessments authorized by law, and that as a result thereof no taxes will be levied against the Project as such, except for certain personal properties thereof. Accordingly, each Unit Owner will pay and discharge any and all taxes and assessments which may be assessed against him on his Unit.
- 34. Covenants to Run With Land; Compliance. This Declaration and all the provisions hereof shall constitute covenants to run with the land or equitable servitudes, as the case may be, and shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of Declarant, all parties who hereafter acquire any interest in a Unit or in the Project, and their respective grantees, transferees, heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors and assigns. Each Owner or occupant of a Unit shall comply with, and all interests in all Units shall be subject to, the terms of the Act, the terms of this Declaration, and the provisions of any rules, regulations, agreements, instruments, and determinations contemplated by this Declaration. By acquiring any interest in a Unit or in the Project, the party acquiring such interest consents to, and agrees to be bound by, each and every provision of this Declaration.
- 35. Information Regarding Transferee of Unit. Any Unit Owner who sells, leases, or otherwise disposes of his Unit shall submit to the Committee pertinent information concerning the transferee or new occupant within one week of any transfer of title or possession on a form furnished by the Committee.
- 36. Duty of Unit Owners; Remedy. Each Unit Owner shall comply strictly with the provisions of this Declaration and with the administrative rules and regulations drafted pursuant thereto as the same may be lawfully amended from time to time and with the decisions adopted pursuant to this Declaration and the administrative rules and regulations, and failure to comply shall be grounds for an action to recover sums due for damages or

injunctive relief or both, maintainable by the Management Committee or manager on behalf of the Unit Owners, or in a proper case, by an aggrieved Unit Owner.

- 37. Exclusion of Warranties. Each Unit and all Common Areas and limited common areas are sold by Declarant "As Is" without any warranty, express or implied, as to any structural or mechanical defects whether they be apparent or latent. The Declarant does not warrant the merchantability of any part of the Units, the Common Areas or the limited common areas. The Declarant does not warrant that any part of any Unit, the Common Area or the Limited Common Area is fit for any particular purpose. Anyone purchasing a condominium unit waives any right he may have to bring an action against Declarant for breach of warranty. No suit whether in equity or at law shall be maintainable against Declarant by the Unit Owners individually or the Association of Unit Owners by reason of any alleged breach of an express or implied warranty.
- 38. <u>Indemnification of Management Committee</u>. Each member of the Management Committee shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Unit Owners against all costs, expenses, and fees, reasonably incurred by him in connection with any proceeding to which he may become involved by reason of his being or having been a member of said Committee.
- 39. Application of By-Laws. All present and future owners, mortgagees, lessees, and occupants of apartment units and their employees, and any other persons who may use the facilities of the condominium in any manner are subject to these By-Laws, the Declaration, and rules and regulations pertaining to the use and operation of the condominium property. The acceptance of a deed or conveyance or the entering into of a lease, or the act of occupancy of an apartment unit shall constitute an acceptance of the provisions of these instruments and an agreement to comply therewith.
- 40. Administrative Rules and Regulations. The management committee shall have the power to adopt, establish and amend by resolution, such building management, and operational rules as it may deem necessary for the maintenance, operation, management and control of the project and the committee may from time to time by resolution, alter, amend and repeal such rules. When a copy of any amendment or alteration or provision for repeal of any rule or rules has been furnished to the unit owners, such amendment, alteration, or repeal shall be deemed to be a part of such rules. Unit owners shall at all times, obey such rules and see that they are faithfully observed by those persons over whom they have or may exercise control and supervision it being understood that such rules shall apply to, and be binding upon all unit owners and/or occupants of any unit.
- 41. Obligation to Comply With Rules. Each unit owner, tenant or occupant of a unit shall comply with the provisions of the Act, Declaration, By-Laws, the rules and regulations, all agreements and determinations lawfully made and/or entered into

by the management committee or unit owners, when acting within the scope of their authority and any failure to comply with any of the provisions thereof shall be grounds for an action by the management committee for injunctive relief and/or to recover for any loss or damage resulting therefrom.

- 42. Abatement and Enjoining of Violations. The violation of any rule or regulation adopted by the management committee, or the breach of any By-Law contained herein, or the breach of any provision of the declaration, shall give the management committee the right, in addition to any other rights available at law or set forth in these By-Laws:
 - (a) to enter the condominium unit in which, or as to which, such violation or breach exists and summarily abate and remove, at the expense of the defaulting unit owner, any structure, thing or condition that may exist therein contrary to the intent and meaning of the provisions hereof, and the management committee shall not thereby be deemed guilty in any manner of trespass; or
 - (b) to enjoin, abate or remedy such thing or condition by appropriate legal proceedings.
- 43. Balconies and Patios. A balcony or patio to which a condominium unit has sole access shall be for the exclusive use of the owner of such condominium unit. Such unit owner shall keep such balcony or patio free and clean of snow, ice, and any accumulation of water, and shall make all repairs thereto resulting from his negligence, misuse, or neglect. All other repairs in, to, or with respect to such balcony or patio shall be made by the management committee as a common expense.
- 44. Notice to Management Committee of Mortgages. A unit owner who mortgages his condominium unit shall notify the management committee of the name and address of his mortgage and shall file a conformed copy of the note and mortgage with the management committee. The management committee shall maint such information in a book entitled "Mortgages of Condominium Units".

45. Sales and Leases of Units.

- (1) No unit owner may sell or lease his condominium unit or any interest therein except by complying with the provisions of this Declaration. A unit owner's sale of his condominium unit shall include the sale of:
 - (a) the undivided interest in the common elements appurtenant thereto; and
 - (b) the interest of such unit owner in any other assets of the condominium, hereinafter collectively called the appurtenant interests.

- (2) No unit owner shall execute any deed, mortgage, or other instrument conveying or mortgaging title to his condominium unit without including therein the appurtenant interests, it being the intention hereof to prevent any severance of such combined ownership. Any such deed, mortgage or other instrument purporting to affect one or more of such interests, without including all such interests, shall be deemed and taken to include the interest or interests so omitted, even though the latter shall not be expressly mentioned or described therein. No part of the appurtenant interests of any condominium unit may be sold, transferred or otherwise disposed of except as a sale, transfer, or other disposition of the condominium unit to which such interests are appurtenant, or as part of a sale, transfer or other disposition of such part of the appurtenant interests of all condominium units.
- (3) Any unit owner shall be free to convey or transfer his condominium unit by gift, or to devise his condominium unit by will, or to pass the same by intestacy, without restriction.
- (4) No unit owner shall be permitted to convey, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate, sell, or lease his condominium unit unless and until he shall have paid in full to the management committee all unpaid common charges theretofore assessed by the management committee against his condominium unit and until he shall have satisfied all unpaid liens against such condominium unit, except permitted mortgages.
- 46. Effect of Invalidity. The invalidity or unenforce-ability of any portion of this Declaration shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remainder hereof.
- 47. Interpretation. To the extent the provisions of the Act are consistent with this Declaration, such provisions shall supplement the terms hereof and are incorporated herein. This Declaration shall be liberally construed to effect its purpose. The captions which precede the Paragraphs of this Declaration are for convenience only and shall in no way affect the manner in which any provision hereof is construed.
- 48. <u>Waiver</u>. No provision contained in this Declaration shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or breaches which may occur.
- 49. Topical Headings; Gender. The headings appearing at the beginning of the paragraphs of this Declaration are only for convenience of reference and are not intended to describe, interpret, define, limit, extend, or otherwise affect the content, meaning or intent of this Declaration or any paragraph or provision hereof. The use of the masculine gender in this Declaration shall be deemed to refer to the feminine gender and the use of the singular shall be deemed to refer to the plural, and vice versa, whenever the context so requires.

- 50. Conflicts. This Declaration is set forth to comply with the requirements of the Act. In the event of any conflict between this Declaration and the provisions of the Act, the provisions of the latter shall control.
- 51. Effective Date. This Declaration shall take effect upon recording in the office of the County Recorder of Salt Lake County, Utah.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, being the Declarant, has caused this instrument to be executed and its seal to be affixed hereto on the $\underline{41}$ day of August, 1978.

MEADOWBROOK DOWNS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATES

By Maling Steward

Its General Partner

STATE OF UTAH) : SS.
COUNTY OF SALT LAKE)

On the 12 day of August, 1978, personally appeared before me did say, that he, the said definition to the said the said to the said the said to the said the said corporation by authority of a resolution of its board of directors and said definition that the said definition of the same and that the seal affixed is the seal of said corporation.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:

Residing at: Walt Nake

EXHIBIT A

TO

ENABLING DECLARATION OF MEADOWBROOK CONDOMINIUM VILLAGE PROJECT

	Q .		8		8	
77 J.L. II	% Ownership	Unit #	Ownership	Unit #	Ownership	
Urit #	Ownership	14B	<u>.4975</u>	27D	.4975	
1A	4975	14C	.4975	28A	.4975	
1B	.4975	14D	.4975	28B	.4975	
1C	.4975	15A	.4975	28C	.4975	
1D	.4975	15B	.4975	28D	.4975	
2A	.4975	15C	.4975	29A	.4975	
2B	.4975	15D	.4975	2 9B	.4975	
2C	.4975	16A	.4975	29C	.4975	
2 D	.4975	16B	.4975	29D	.4975	
3A	.4975	16C	.4975	30A	.4975	
3 B	.4975	16D	.4975	30B	.4975	
3C	.4975	17A	.4975	30C	.4975	
3D	.4975	17B	.4975	30D	.4975	
4A	.4975	17C	.4975	31A	.4975	
4B	.4975	17D	.4975	31B	.4975 .4975	
4C	.4975	18A	.4975	31C	.4975	
4D 5A	.4975 .4975	18B 18C	.4975 .4975	31D 32A	.4975	
5B	.4975	18D	.4975	32B	.4975	
5C	.4975	19A	.4975	32B 32C	.4975	
5D	.4975	19B	.4975	32D	.4975	
6A	.4975	19C	.4975	33A	.4975	
6 B	.4975	19D	.4975	33B	.4975	
6C	.4975	20A	.4975	33C	.4975	
6D	.4975	20B	.4975	33D	.4975	
7A	.4975	20C	.4975	34A	.4975	
7 B	.4975	20D	.4975	34B	.4975	
7 C	.4975	21A	.4975	34C	.4975	
7 D	.4975	21B	.4975	34D	.4975	
8A	.4975	21C	.4975	35A	.4975	
8B	.4975	21D	.4975	35B	.4975	
8C	.4975	22A	.4975	35C	.4975 .4975	
8D 9A	.4975 .4975	22B 22C	.4975	35D	.4975	
9B	.4975	22D	.4975 .4975	36A 36B	.4975	
9C	.4975	23A	.4975	36C	.4975	
9D	.4975	23B	.4975	36D	.4975	
10A	.4975	23C	.4975	37A	.4975	
10B	.4975	23D	.4975	37B	.4975	
10C	.4975	24A	.4975	37C	.4975	
10D	.4975	24B	.4975	37D	.4975	
11A	.4975	24C	.4975	A8E	.4975	
11 B	.4975	24D	.4975	38B	.4975	800K47
11C	.4975	25A	.4975	38C	.4975	吴
1 1D	.4975	25B	.4975	38D	.4975	7
12A	.4975	25C	.4975	39A	.4975	27
12B	.4975	2 5D	.4975	39B	.4975	
12C	.4975	26A	.4975	39C	.4975	1000
12D	.4975	26B	4975	39D	.4975	
13A	.4975 .4975	26C 26D	.4975 .4975	40A	.4975 .4975	633
13B	.4975	20D 27A	.4975	40B 40C	.4975	<u>ښ</u>
13C 13D	.4975	27A 27B	.4975	40C 40D	.4975	-,
13D 14A	.4975	27D	.4975	41A	.4975	
-E-1-1	• 10,0	-·	•	•		

Recorded AUG 23 1978 100 amm
Request of Calvan B Stewart

KATIE L. DIXON, Recorder Salt Lake County, Utah

8/35:00 By Saturia & Brown Deputy
REF. Patricia Brown

4370

1166 West 8

Unit	#	Owne	g rs	hip
Unit 41B 41C 41D 42A 42BC 42DA 43B 43C 43D 44AB 44CD 44DA 45BC 46DA 47BC 47D 48BC 49DA 49BC 49DA 50B	##	. 4 . 4 . 4 . 4 . 4 . 4 . 4 . 4 . 4 . 4	\$\frac{1}{2}	555555555555555555555555555555555555555
50C 50D 51		. 4	97 97 97	5

CONSENT OF MORTGAGEE

a month material di	OMPANY, a corporation,
(the Mortgagee), hereby con brook Downs Condominium Ass nants, Conditions and Restr	sents to the recordation by Meadow- ociates, of the "Declaration of Cove- ictions of Meadowbrook Condominium cord of Survey Map in the Official
DATED this	day of August, 1978.
AE	TNA INSURANCE COMPANY
Ву	
	Its
ATTEST:	
Its Secretary	
STATE OF) : ss. COUNTY OF)	
who being by me duly sworn, and Secretary, respectively oration of the United State was signed by them in behall a resolution of its Board of	of, 1978, personally and, did say that they are the , of Aetna Insurance Company, a corps, and that the foregoing instrument f of said Corporation by authority of Directors and they each duly acknow-Corporation executed the same and that 1 of said Corporation.
	NOTARY PUBLIC
My Commission Expires:	Residing at: